
 

 
 

FINANCE AND ADMINISTRATION 
COMMITTEE MEETING 

OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY* 

 
WEDNESDAY, JANUARY 13, 2021 

10:30 A.M. 
 

INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY* 
VIEW THE MEETING LIVE ONLINE AT IEUA.ORG  

TELEPHONE ACCESS: (415) 856-9169 / Conf Code: 606 409 613# 
 
PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF EXECUTIVE ORDER N-25-20 ISSUED BY GOVERNOR GAVIN 
NEWSOM ON MARCH 12, 2020, AND EXECUTIVE ORDER N-29-20 ISSUED BY GOVERNOR GAVIN 
NEWSOM ON MARCH 17, 2020 AND IN AN EFFORT TO PROTECT PUBLIC HEALTH AND PREVENT 

THE SPREAD OF COVID-19, THERE WILL NO PUBLIC LOCATION FOR ATTENDING IN PERSON. 
 

The public may participate and provide public comment during the meeting by dialing into the number 
provided above.   Alternatively, public comments may be emailed to the Board Secretary/Office Manager 

Denise Garzaro at dgarzaro@ieua.org no later than 24 hours prior to the scheduled meeting time. 
Comments will then be read into the record during the meeting. 

 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

 
Members of the public may address the Board on any item that is within the jurisdiction of the Board; 
however, no action may be taken on any item not appearing on the agenda unless the action is 
otherwise authorized by Subdivision (b) of Section 54954.2 of the Government Code.  Those persons 
wishing to address the Board on any matter, whether or not it appears on the agenda, are requested to 
email the Board Secretary/Office Manager no later than 24 hours prior to the scheduled meeting time 
or address the Board during the public comments section of the meeting.  Comments will be limited to 
three minutes per speaker.  Thank you. 

 

 
ADDITIONS TO THE AGENDA 
 

 
In accordance with Section 54954.2 of the Government Code (Brown Act), additions to the agenda require 
two-thirds vote of the legislative body, or, if less than two-thirds of the members are present, a unanimous 
vote of those members present, that there is a need to take immediate action and that the need for action 
came to the attention of the local agency subsequent to the agenda being posted. 
 

 
 

 

mailto:dgarzaro@ieua.org


Finance and Administration Committee  
January 13, 2021 
Page 2 
  

1. CONSENT ITEMS 
 

A. MINUTES 
Approve Minutes of the December 9, 2020 Finance and Administration 
Committee meeting.  
 

B. REPORT ON GENERAL DISBURSEMENTS  
Staff recommends that the Committee/Board approve the total 
disbursements for the month of November 2020, in the amount of 
$17,777,238.14.  

 

2. ACTION ITEM 
 

A. PERSONNEL POLICY REVIEW SERVICES CONSULTANT CONTRACT 
AWARD 
Staff recommends that the Committee/Board: 

 
1. Award a contract for Personnel Policy Review Services, to Liebert 

Cassidy Whitmore, for a not-to-exceed amount of $110,000; and  
 

2.  Authorize the General Manager to execute the contract. 
 

3. INFORMATION ITEMS 
 

A. 2013 REGIONAL MASTER PLAN UPDATE (RMPU) FINANCING 
OPTIONS (WRITTEN/POWERPOINT) 

 

RECEIVE AND FILE INFORMATION ITEM 
 

B. TREASURER’S REPORT OF FINANCIAL AFFAIRS (WRITTEN/ 
POWERPOINT) 

 
4. GENERAL MANAGER’S COMMENTS 

 
5. COMMITTEE MEMBER COMMENTS 
 

6. COMMITTEE MEMBER REQUESTED FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 
 

 

ADJOURN  
 

*A Municipal Water District 

 

 

 

 



Finance and Administration Committee  
January 13, 2021 
Page 3 
  
 

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to participate in 
this meeting, please contact the Board Secretary/Office Manager (909-993-1736), 48 hours prior to the 
scheduled meeting so that the Agency can make reasonable arrangements. 

 
 
DECLARATION OF POSTING  
I, Denise Garzaro, Board Secretary/Office Manager of the Inland Empire Utilities Agency, A Municipal Water District, hereby certify 
that a copy of this agenda has been posted by 5:30 p.m.  to the IEUA Website at www.ieua.org and outside the Agency's main office, 
6075 Kimball Avenue, Building A, Chino on Thursday, January 7, 2021. 
 

 
_______________________ 
Denise Garzaro, CMC 
 

http://www.ieua.org/


Finance and Administration Committee 

 
  
 

             1A 

 

  CONSENT 

                         ITEM 



 

 

 
MINUTES 

FINANCE AND ADMINISTRATION  
COMMITTEE MEETING 

INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY*  
AGENCY HEADQUARTERS, CHINO, CA 

 
WEDNESDAY, DECEMBER 9, 2020 

10:30 A.M. 
 

COMMITTEE MEMBERS PRESENT via Teleconference  
Paul Hofer, Chair 
Steven J. Elie 
 

STAFF PRESENT 
Shivaji Deshmukh, General Manager 
Christiana Daisy, Deputy General Manager 

 Denise Garzaro, Board Secretary/Office Manager  
 Wilson To, Technology Specialist II  
  

STAFF PRESENT via Teleconference 
Jasmin A. Hall, Vice President 
Kathy Besser, Executive Manager of External & Government Affairs/AGM 
Randy Lee, Executive Manager of Operations/AGM 

 Christina Valencia, Executive Manager of Finance & Administration/AGM 
 Jerry Burke, Manager of Engineering 
 Javier Chagoyen-Lazaro, Manager of Finance & Accounting   
 Robert Delgado, Manager of Operations & Maintenance 
 Warren Green, Manager of Contracts, Procurement & Security 
 Don Hamlett, Acting Deputy Manager of Integrated System Services 
 Jennifer Hy-Luk, Administrative Assistant II  
 Suresh Malkani, Principal Accountant 
 Sapna Nangia, Senior Internal Auditor 
 Cathleen Pieroni, Manager of Inter-Agency Relations 
 Sushmitha Reddy, Manager of Laboratories 
 Jeanina Romero, Executive Assistant 
 Daniel Solorzano, Technology Specialist I 
 Teresa Velarde, Manager of Internal Audit 
 

OTHERS PRESENT via Teleconference 
Ryan Domino, LSL 

 
CALL TO ORDER 
Committee Chair Paul Hofer called the meeting to order at 10:36 a.m. He provided directions for 
public participation and then gave the public the opportunity to comment and provided instructions 
for unmuting the conference line.  



Finance and Administration Committee  
December 9, 2020 
Page 2 

 

  

 
There were no public comments received or additions to the agenda. 
 
1A – 1B. CONSENT ITEMS 
The Committee: 

 Approved Minutes of the November 11, 2020 Finance and Administration Committee 
meeting. 
 

 Recommended that the Board approve the total disbursements for the month of October 
2020, in the amount of $20,222,969.94; 

 
 and 

 

1. Approve the amendment to Contract Number 4600002018 with Allied Universal 
Security Services for IEUA uniformed security services, for a one-year extension 
through December 31, 2021 for a not-to-exceed amount of $250,000; and 

 

2. Authorize the General Manager to execute the contract amendment subject to 
non-substantive changes; 

 

as Consent Calendar Items on the December 16, 2020 Board meeting agenda. 
 

2A. ACTION ITEMS 
The Committee: 
 

 Recommended that the Board:  
 

1. Approve the Single Audit Report for fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, in draft form; 
 
2. Approve the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for fiscal year ended June 

30, 2020; and 
 
3. Direct staff to distribute the report as appropriate, to various federal, state and 

local agencies, financial institutions, bond rating agencies, and other interested 
parties; as an Action Item on the December 16, 2020 Board meeting agenda. 

 
3A – 3B. INFORMATION ITEMS 
The following information items were presented or received and filed by the Committee: 
 

 Fiscal Year 2020/21 First Quarter Budget Variance, Performance Goal Updates, and 
Budget Transfers 

 Treasurer’s Report of Financial Affairs 
 
 

4. GENERAL MANAGER’S COMMENTS 
General Manager Shivaji Deshmukh stated that incoming Director Marco Tule has been sworn in 
and is scheduled to attend his first Board meeting on December 16, 2020 Board. He added that 
Director Michael Camacho has also been sworn in after being reelected. 
 
5. COMMITTEE MEMBER COMMENTS 
There were no Committee member comments.  
 



Finance and Administration Committee  
December 9, 2020 
Page 3 

 

  

6. COMMITTEE MEMBER REQUESTED FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 
There were no Committee member requests for future agenda items.  
 
With no further business, Committee Chair Hofer adjourned the meeting at 10:50 a.m. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Denise Garzaro 
Board Secretary/Office Manager 
 
*A Municipal Water District 
 

APPROVED:   JANUARY 13, 2021 



 Finance and Administration Committee 

 
  
 

             1B 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  CONSENT 

                         ITEM 



General Manager

Budget Impact 

January 20, 2021

Report on General Disbursements

Total disbursements for the month of November 2020 were $17,777,238.14. Disbursement
activity included check payments of $867,416.41 to vendors and $10,465.82 for worker’s
compensation related costs. Electronic payments included the Automated Clearing House
(ACH) of $8,989,937.26 and wire transfers (excluding payroll) of $6,257,277.87. The total
payroll was $1,644,496.62 for employees and $7,644.16 for the Board of Directors.

Approve the total disbursements for the month of November 2020, in the amount of
$17,777,238.14.

01/13/21Finance & Administration

Christina Valencia, Executive Manager of Finance & Administration/AGM

N Y

Executive Contact:



Page 2 of 

Business Goal: 

:

Environmental :

The report on general disbursements is consistent with the Agency’s Business Goal of Fiscal
Responsibility in providing financial reporting that accounts for general disbursements
associated with operating requirements.

On December 16, 2020 the Board of Directors approved the October 2020 Report on General
Disbursements totaling $20,222,969.94.

Attachment 1 - Background
Attachment 2 - Details of General Disbursements

Not Applicable

21003



 

   Page 1 of 1 

  

 

 

Background 

Subject: Report on General Disbursements 

  

 

Table 1 summarizes the disbursements detailed in each of the six attachments affixed to this letter. 

Table 2 lists the disbursements in excess of an aggregated $500,000 per vendor and is presented 

in largest to smallest dollar value. 
  

 

Table 1:  Disbursement Details 
 

Attachment Payment Type Amount 

2A Vendor Checks  $     867,416.41 

2B Workers' Comp Checks  $       10,465,82 

2C Vendor ACHs  $  8,989,937.26 

2D Vendor Wires (excludes Payroll) $  6,257,277.87 

2E Payroll-Net Pay-Directors  $         7,644.16          

     2F Payroll-Net Pay-Employees  $  1,644,496.62 

 Total Disbursements $17,777,238.14 
 

Table 2:  Disbursements in Excess of $500,000 per Vendor 
 

Vendor Amount Description 

MWD $ 4,754,613.19 September 2020 Water Purchases 

WM LYLES COMPANY $ 1,124,452.57 

Professional Svc’s for: EN17043 – RP-4 Primary 

Clarifier Rehabilitation; EN17110-Rp-4 Process 

Improvements; EN18006 RP-1 Flare Improvements 

CHINO BASIN DESALTER 

AUTHORITY 
$ 1,060,217.97 

EN16021.90 TCE Plume Clean-Up –  

  Contribution #22, and SWRCB Chino Basin 

Improvement & Groundwater Clean-Up Project 

FERREIRA COASTAL 

CONSTRUCTION 
$    782,724.47 

Professional Svc’s for:  EN 20065 - RP-1 Hot Water 

Loop Replacement; RW15004-Lower Day Basin 

RMPU Improvements 

PERS $    677,267.61 11/20 Health Ins / P/R 23, 24 Def Comp 

IRS $    662,111.67 P/R 23, 24; Dir 11 Payroll Taxes 

INLAND EMPIRE REGIONAL 

COMPOSTING AUTHORITY 
$    572,780.74 

11/20 Capital Call; 10/20 RP1 Biosolids; 10/20 RP2 

Biosolids 

 

 













































































































































 Finance and Administration Committee 

2A 
  ACTION 

ITEM 



General Manager

Budget Impact 

January 20, 2021

Personnel Policy Services Consultant Contract Award

On September 3, 2020 the Agency released a Request for Proposals (RFP) for a comprehensive 
audit of the Agency’s documents that govern the employment relationship. The Agency received 
six (6) proposals for the Request for Proposals Number RFP-SS-20-00. An evaluation 
committee, with staff from; Human Resources, Internal Audit, and Contracts, Procurement & 
Risk Services reviewed the proposals. Two (2) firms were shortlisted for interviews.

Based on the bidder’s qualifications, experience, capability, and understanding of the scope, the 
evaluation committee determined that the law firm of Liebert Cassidy Whitmore (LCW) was the 
successful bidder. As such, LCW will provide a comprehensive audit of the Agency’s 
documents that govern the employment relationship, those documents include; the Agency’s 
current Memoranda of Understanding, Personnel Manuals, Administrative Policies, 
Employee-Employer Relations Resolution, At-Will Resolution and At-Will Ordinance. Once the 
audit is complete, LCW will provide recommendations on the revisions of these documents in 
the form of a detailed report. Agency staff will be collaborating with LCW, in order to assure 
that the Agency needs are addressed.

1. Award a contract for Personnel Policy Review Services, to Liebert Cassidy Whitmore, for a
not-to-exceed amount of $110,000; and

2. Authorize the General Manager to execute the contract.

$ 110,000

Funding is appropriated in the FY 2020/21 Budget.

01/13/21Finance & Administration

Shivaji Deshmukh, General Manager

Y Y

Executive Contact:



Page 2 of 

Business Goal: 

:

Environmental :

Workplace Environment: IEUA is committed to providing a dynamic work environment with a
highly skilled and dedicated workforce.

Not Applicable

Attachment 1 - Contract (Click to Download Complete Contract)

Not Applicable

https://ieua-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/mduenas_ieua_org/EVXIoPE50YhEqRjMriVLMUABthUH8SH3uD-FesVxHGgnzA?e=JKFtZf
https://ieua-my.sharepoint.com/personal/mduenas_ieua_org/_layouts/15/onedrive.aspx?id=%2Fpersonal%2Fmduenas%5Fieua%5Forg%2FDocuments%2FDesktop%2FLiebert%20Cassidy%20Whitmore%2F21021%20B%20Liebert%20Cassidy%20Whitmore%20Contract%204600002980%2011%2D24%2D2020%2Epdf&parent=%2Fpersonal%2Fmduenas%5Fieua%5Forg%2FDocuments%2FDesktop%2FLiebert%20Cassidy%20Whitmore&originalPath=aHR0cHM6Ly9pZXVhLW15LnNoYXJlcG9pbnQuY29tLzpiOi9nL3BlcnNvbmFsL21kdWVuYXNfaWV1YV9vcmcvRVZYSW9QRTUwWWhFcVJqTXJpVkxNVUFCdGhVSDhTSDN1RC1GZXNWeEhHZ256QT9ydGltZT1qb01SOW42eTJFZw
https://www.dropbox.com/s/nbi74lu0gvepok7/21021%20B%20Liebert%20Cassidy%20Whitmore%20Contract%204600002980%2011-24-2020.pdf?dl=0


 

 

4600002980  (RW)                                                                                                             Page 1 of 12 

11/23/2020 

 
 

CONTRACT NUMBER: 4600002980 

FOR 

PERSONNEL POLICY REVIEW SERVICES 

 

THIS CONTRACT (the “Contract”) is made and entered into this _____ day of ______________, 
2021, by and between the Inland Empire Utilities Agency, a Municipal Water District, organized 
and existing in the County of San Bernardino under and by virtue of the laws of the State of 
California (hereinafter referred to interchangeably as “Agency” or “IEUA”), and Liebert Cassidy 
Whitmore of Los Angeles, California (hereinafter referred to as “Consultant”), for the provision of 
services needed to review IEUA policy and procedural documents. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and obligations set forth herein, the 
parties agree as follows: 
  

1. AGENCY PROJECT MANAGER ASSIGNMENT:  All technical direction related to this 
Contract shall come from the designated Project Manager.  Details of the Agency's 
assignment are listed below. 

 

 Project Manager: Michael Dueñas, Employee & Labor Relations Advocate 
 Company Name: Human Resources Dept., Inland Empire Utilities Agency 

 Address: 6075 Kimball Avenue, Building “A” 
  Chino, California, 91708 

 Telephone: 909-993-1600, extension 1678 
 Facsimile: 909-993-1984 
 Email: mduenas@ieua.org  
  
    
2. CONSULTANT ASSIGNMENT:  Special inquiries related to this Contract and the effects 

of this Contract shall be referred to the following: 
 

 Consultant: Mr. T. Oliver Yee, Partner 
 Company Name: Liebert Cassidy Whitmore 

           Address:      6033 W. Century Boulevard, 5th Floor 
                                                            Los Angeles, CA 90045 
 Telephone: (310) 981-2044 
 Facsimile: (310) 337-0837 
 Email: oyee@lcwlegal.com 
  
 

mailto:mduenas@ieua.org
mailto:oyee@lcwlegal.com


 

 

4600002980  (RW)                                                                                                             Page 2 of 12 

11/23/2020 

3. ORDER OF PRECEDENCE:  The documents referenced below represent the Contract 
Documents.  Where any conflicts exist between the General Terms and Conditions the 
governing order of precedence shall be as follows: 

 
1. Amendments to Contract Number 4600002980.  
2. Contract Number 4600002980 General Terms and Conditions. 
3. Agency Request for Proposals Number RFP-SS-20-002 and all germane 

Addenda. 
4. Consultant’s Proposal dated September 24, 2020. 

 
4. SCOPE OF WORK AND SERVICES:  Consultant services and responsibilities shall 

include and be in accordance with IEUA Request for Proposals RFP-SS-20-002, 
incorporated herein by this reference, and Consultant’s proposal, attached hereto, 
referenced herein, and made a part hereof as Exhibit 1. 

 
A. Cure Procedure: 

 

1. For a Cure Notice deemed by the Agency to be urgent, Consultant shall 
correct any error of the Work within ten (10) calendar days after Consultant’s 
receipt of a Cure Notice, as directed by the Project Manager.  

 

2. For a Cure Notice deemed by the Agency to be important, Consultant shall 
correct any error of the Work within thirty (30) calendar days after 
Consultant’s receipt of a Cure Notice, as directed by the Project Manager.  

 

3. If the Project Manager rejects all, or any part of, the Work as unacceptable 
and agreement to correct such Work cannot be reached without modification 
to the Contract, Consultant shall notify the Project Manager, in writing, 
detailing the dispute and the reason(s) for the Consultant’s position. Any 
dispute that cannot be resolved between the Project Manager and 
Consultant shall be resolved in accordance with the provisions of this 
Contract. 

 
B. The Agency may, at any time, make changes to this Contract’s Scope of Work, 

including additions, reductions, and other alterations to any or all of the Work.  
However, such changes shall only be made via written Amendment to this Contract.  
The Contract compensation and Schedule of Work and Services shall be equitably 
adjusted, if required, to account for such changes and shall be set forth within the 
mutually-approved Contract Amendment.   

 
5. TERM:  The term of this Contract shall extend from the date of the Notice to Proceed and 

terminate on December 31, 2021, unless agreed upon by both parties, reduced to writing, 
and amended to this Contract. 

 
6. PAYMENT, INVOICING, AND COMPENSATION:   
 

A. The Consultant may submit an invoice not more than once per month during the 
term of this Contract to the Agency’s Accounts Payable Department.   Agency shall 



4600002980  (RW)        Page 3 of 12 

11/23/2020 

pay Consultant's properly-executed invoice, approved by the Project Manager, 
within thirty (30) days following receipt of the invoice.  

B. As compensation for the Work performed under this Contract, Agency shall pay 
Consultant’s monthly invoice, for a total contract price NOT-TO-EXCEED
$110,000.00 for all services satisfactorily provided during the term of this Contract. 
Additionally, to qualify for payment, the Consultant shall prominently display, on 
the first page of the invoice, the Contract Number – 4600002980. Consultant shall 
submit invoice by email to APGroup@ieua.org . Payment is via Automated Clearing 
House (ACH).

C. No Additional Compensation: Nothing set forth in this Contract shall be interpreted 
to require payment by Agency to Consultant of any compensation specifically for the 
assignments and assurances required by the Contract, other than the payment of 
expenses as may be actually incurred by Consultant in complying with this Contract, 
as approved by the Project Manager. 

7. CONTROL OF THE WORK:  The Consultant shall perform the Work in compliance with
the Schedule of Work and Services.  If performance of the Work falls behind schedule,
the Consultant shall accelerate the performance of the Work to comply with the Schedule
of Work and Services as directed by the Project Manager.  If the nature of the Work is
such that Consultant is unable to accelerate the Work, Consultant shall promptly notify
the Project Manager of the delay, the causes of the delay, and submit a proposed revised
Schedule of Work and Services.

8. INSURANCE:  During the term of this Contract, the Consultant shall maintain, at
Consultant's sole expense, the following insurance.

A. Minimum Scope of Insurance:  Coverage shall be at least as broad as:

1. Commercial General Liability (“CGL”):  Insurance Services Office (“ISO”)
Form CG 00 01 covering CGL on an “occurrence” basis, including products
and completed operations, property damage, bodily injury and personal &
advertising injury with limits no less than $1,000,000 per occurrence. If a
general aggregate limit applies, either the general aggregate limit shall
apply separately to this project/location (ISO CG 25 03 or 25 04) or the
general aggregate limit shall be twice the required occurrence limit.

2. Automobile Liability:  ISO Form Number CA 00 01 covering any auto (Code
1), or if Consultant has no owned autos, covering hired, (Code 8) and non-
owned autos (Code 9), with limit no less than $1,000,000 per accident for
bodily injury and property damage.

3. Workers' Compensation and Employers Liability:  Workers' compensation
limits as required by the State of California, with Statutory Limits, and
Employer’s Liability Insurance with limit of no less than $1,000,000 per
accident for bodily injury or disease.

mailto:APGroup@ieua.org


 

 

4600002980  (RW)                                                                                                             Page 4 of 12 

11/23/2020 

 
4. Professional Liability (Errors and Omissions): Insurance appropriate to the 

Consultant’s profession, with limit no less than $1,000,000 per occurrence or 
claim, $2,000,000 aggregate. 

 
B. Deductibles and Self-Insured Retention:  Any deductibles or self-insured retention 

must be declared to and approved by the Agency.  At the option of the Agency, 
either:  the insurer shall reduce or eliminate such deductibles or self-insured 
retention as respects the Agency, its officers, officials, employees and volunteers; 
or the Consultant shall procure a bond guaranteeing payment of losses and related 
investigations, claim administration and defense expenses. 

 
C. Other Insurance Provisions:  The insurance policies are to contain, or be endorsed 

to contain, the following provisions: 
 

1. Commercial General Liability and Automobile Liability Coverage 
 
a. Additional Insured Status:  The Agency, its officers, officials, 

employees, and volunteers are to be covered as additional insureds 
on the CGL policy with respect to liability arising out of work or 
operations performed by or on behalf of the Consultant including 
materials, parts or equipment supplied in connection with such work 
or operations. General liability coverage can be provided in the form 
of an endorsement to the Consultant’s insurance (at least as broad as 
ISO Form CG 20 10 11 85; or by either CG 20 10, CG 20 26, CG 20 
33, or CG 20 38 and CG 20 37 forms if later revisions are used). 
 

b. Primary Coverage:  The Consultant's insurance coverage shall be 
primary insurance coverage at least as broad as ISO CG 20 01 04 13 
as respects the Agency, its officer, officials, employees and 
volunteers.  Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by the 
Agency, its officers, officials, employees, volunteers, property owners 
or engineers under contract with the Agency shall be excess of the 
Consultant's insurance and shall not contribute with it. 

 
c. Any failure to comply with reporting provisions of the policies shall not 

affect coverage provided to the Agency, its officers, officials, 
employees or volunteers. 

 
d. The Consultant's insurance shall apply separately to each insured 

against whom claim is made or suit is brought, except with respect to 
the limits of the insurer's liability. 

 
e. The Consultant may satisfy the limit requirements in a single policy or 

multiple policies.  Any additional policies written as excess insurance 
shall not provide any less coverage than that provided by the first or 
primary policy. 



 

 

4600002980  (RW)                                                                                                             Page 5 of 12 

11/23/2020 

 
2. Workers' Compensation and Employers Liability Coverage 

 
Consultant hereby grants to Agency a waiver of any right to subrogation 
which any insurer of the Consultant may acquire against the Agency by virtue 
of the payment of any loss under such insurance.  Consultant agrees to 
obtain any endorsement that may be necessary to affect this waiver of 
subrogation, but this provision applies regardless of whether or not the 
Agency has received a waiver of subrogation endorsement from the insurer. 

 
3. All Coverages 

 
Each insurance policy required by this Contract shall be endorsed to state 
that coverage shall not be suspended, voided, canceled by either party, or 
reduced in coverage or in limits except after thirty (30) days prior written 
notice by certified mail, return receipt requested, has been given to the 
Agency pursuant to Section 14, page 12 of this Contract. 

 
D. Acceptability of Insurers:  Insurance is to be placed with insurers with a current A.M. 

Best's rating of no less than A minus:VII, and who are admitted insurers in the State 
of California. 

 
E. Verification of Coverage:  Consultant shall provide the Agency with original 

certificates and amendatory endorsements or copies of the applicable policy 
language effecting coverage required by this clause.  All certificates and 
endorsements are to be received and approved by the Agency before work 
commences.  However, failure to obtain the required documents prior to the work 
beginning shall not waive the Consultant’s obligation to provide them.  The Agency 
reserves the right to require complete, certified copies of all required insurance 
policies, including endorsements required by these specifications, at any time. 

 
F. Submittal of Certificates:  Consultant shall submit all required certificates and 

endorsements to the following: 
 
   Inland Empire Utilities Agency, a Municipal Water District 
   Attn:  Ms. Angela Witte, Risk Specialist 
   P.O. Box 9020 
   Chino Hills, CA  91709 
   email awitte@ieua.org  
 
9. FITNESS FOR DUTY:   
 

A. Fitness:  Consultant and its SubConsultant personnel: 
 

1. Shall report to work in a manner fit to do their job;  
 

mailto:awitte@ieua.org


 

 

4600002980  (RW)                                                                                                             Page 6 of 12 

11/23/2020 

2. Shall not be under the influence of or in possession of any alcoholic 
beverages or of any controlled substance (except a controlled substance 
as prescribed by a physician so long as the performance or safety of the 
Work is not affected thereby); and 

 
3. Shall not have been convicted of any serious criminal offense which, by its 

nature, may have a discernible adverse impact on the business or 
reputation of the Agency. 

 
B. Compliance:  Consultant shall advise all personnel and associated third parties of 

the requirements of this Contract (“Fitness for Duty Requirements”) before they 
enter on the Jobsite and shall immediately remove from the Jobsite any employee 
determined to be in violation of these requirements.  Consultant shall impose these 
requirements on its SubConsultants.  Agency may cancel the Contract if Consultant 
violates these Fitness for Duty Requirements.  

 
10. LEGAL RELATIONS AND RESPONSIBILITIES: 
 

A. Professional Responsibility:  The Consultant shall be responsible, to the level of 
competency presently maintained by other practicing professionals performing the 
same or similar type of work. 

 
B. Status of Consultant:  The Consultant is retained as an independent Consultant only, 

for the sole purpose of providing the services described herein, and is not an 
employee of the Agency.   

 
C. Observing Laws and Ordinances:  The Consultant shall keep itself fully informed of 

all existing and future state and federal laws and all county and city ordinances and 
regulations which in any manner affect the conduct of any services or tasks 
performed under this Contract, and of all such orders and decrees of bodies or 
tribunals having any jurisdiction or authority over the same.  The Consultant shall at 
all times observe and comply with all such existing and future laws, ordinances, 
regulations, orders and decrees, and shall protect and indemnify, as required herein, 
the Agency, its officers, employees and agents against any claim or liability arising 
from or based on the violation of any such law, ordinance, regulation, order or 
decree, whether by the Consultant, its employees, or SubConsultants.   

 
D. Subcontract Services:  Any subcontracts for the performance of any services under 

this Contract shall be subject to the written approval of the Project Manager and 
shall comply with State of California, Department of Industrial Relations, SB 854 
requirements. 

 

E. Grant Funded Projects:  This is not a grant funded project.   For grant-funded 
projects, the Consultant shall be responsible to comply with all grant requirements 
related to the Project.   These may include, but shall not be limited to: Davis-Bacon 
Act, Endangered Species Act, Executive Order 11246 (Affirmative Action 
Requirements), Equal Opportunity, Competitive Solicitation, Record Retention and 
Public Access to Records, and Compliance Review.   



 

 

4600002980  (RW)                                                                                                             Page 7 of 12 

11/23/2020 

 

F. Hours of Labor:  The Consultant shall comply with all applicable provisions of 
California Labor Code Sections 1810 to 1815 relating to working hours.  The 
Consultant shall, as a penalty to the Agency, forfeit $25.00 for each worker 
employed in the completion of the Contract by the Consultant or by any 
SubConsultant for each calendar day during which such worker is required or 
permitted to work more than eight hours in any one calendar day and forty (40) hours 
in any one calendar week in violation of the provisions of the Labor Code. 

 

G. Travel and Subsistence Pay:  The Consultant shall make payment to each worker 
for travel and subsistence payments which are needed to complete the work and/or 
service, as such travel and subsistence payments are defined in an applicable 
collective bargaining agreements with the worker. 

 

H. Liens:  Consultant shall pay all sums of money that become due from any labor, 
services, materials or equipment provided to Consultant on account of said services 
to be rendered or said materials to be provided under this Contract and that may be 
secured by any lien against the Agency.  Consultant shall fully discharge each such 
lien at the time performance of the obligation secured matures and becomes due. 

 

I. Indemnification:  Consultant shall indemnify the Agency, its directors, employees, 
and assigns, and shall defend and hold them harmless from all liabilities, demands, 
actions, claims, losses and expenses, including reasonable attorneys’ fees, which 
arise out of, or are related to, the negligence, recklessness or willful misconduct of 
the Consultant, its directors, employees, agents, and assigns, in the performance of 
work under this contract.  

 
In addition to the above, Consultant will indemnify, defend, and hold Agency, its 
directors, employees, agents, and assigns harmless from all liabilities, losses, 
damages, claims, penalties, fines, costs, attorney’s fees or other responsibilities 
incurred by the Agency (an “Indemnified Loss”) as a result of the acts, errors or 
omissions, whether intentional, negligent or otherwise, of Consultant, its 
employees, and its consultants that result in claims against the Agency by 
Consultant’s employees, consultants, and/or contractors for employment-related 
claims including but not limited to claims for wages, benefits, insurances, 
employee misconduct, workplace hostile environment, wrongful termination, 
discrimination or retaliation. Consultant will not be obligated to indemnify, defend, 
or hold harmless Agency for any liabilities, losses, damages, claims, penalties, 
fines, costs, attorney’s fees or other responsibilities incurred by the Agency (a 
“Non-Indemnified Loss”) as a result of claims made by Consultant’s employees, 
consultants, and/or contractors against Agency arising out of the negligent, 
intentional, or reckless acts, errors or omissions of Agency and its employees. 

 
J. Conflict of Interest:  No official of the Agency, who is authorized in such capacity and 

on behalf of the Agency to negotiate, make, accept or approve, or to take part in 
negotiating, making, accepting or approving this Contract, or any subcontract 
relating to services or tasks to be performed pursuant to this Contract, shall become 
directly or indirectly personally interested in this Contract. 



 

 

4600002980  (RW)                                                                                                             Page 8 of 12 

11/23/2020 

 
K. Equal Opportunity:  During the performance of this Contract, the Consultant shall 

not unlawfully discriminate against any employee or employment applicant because 
of race, color, religion, sex, age, marital status, ancestry, physical or mental 
disability, sexual orientation, veteran status or national origin. The Agency is 
committed to creating and maintaining an environment free from harassment and 
discrimination.   

 
L. Disputes: 

 
1. All disputes arising out of or in relation to this Contract shall be resolved in 

accordance with this section.  The Consultant shall pursue the work to 
completion in accordance with the instruction of the Agency's Project 
Manager notwithstanding the existence of a dispute.  By entering into this 
Contract, both parties are obligated, and hereby agree, to submit all disputes 
arising under or relating to the Contract which remain unresolved after the 
exhaustion of the procedures provided herein, to independent arbitration.  
Except as otherwise provided herein, arbitration shall be conducted under 
California Code of Civil Procedure Sections 1280, et seq., or their successor. 

 
2. Any and all disputes prior to the work starting shall be subject to resolution 

by the Agency’s Project Manager; and the Consultant shall comply, with the 
Agency Project Manager instructions.  If the Consultant is not satisfied with 
the resolution directed by the Agency Project Manager, they may file a written 
protest with the Agency Project Manager within seven (7) calendar days after 
receiving written directive of the Project Manager's decision.  Failure by 
Consultant to file a written protest within seven (7) calendar days shall 
constitute waiver of protest, and acceptance of the Project Manager's 
resolution.  The Project Manager shall submit the Consultant's written 
protests to the General Manager, together with a copy of the Project Mana-
ger's written decision, for his or her consideration within seven (7) calendar 
days after receipt of the protest-related documents.  The General Manager 
shall make his or her determination with respect to each protest filed with the 
Project Manager within ten (10) calendar days after receipt of the protest-
related documents.  If Consultant is not satisfied with any such resolution by 
the General Manager, they may file a written request for arbitration with the 
Project Manager within seven (7) calendar days after receiving written notice 
of the General Manager's decision. 

 
3. In the event of arbitration, the parties to this contract agree that there shall be 

a single neutral Arbitrator who shall be selected in the following manner: 
 

a. The Demand for Arbitration shall include a list of five (5) names of 
persons acceptable to the Consultant to be appointed as Arbitrator.  
The Agency shall determine if any of the names submitted by 
Consultant are acceptable and, if so, such person will be designated 
as Arbitrator. 



 

 

4600002980  (RW)                                                                                                             Page 9 of 12 

11/23/2020 

 
b. In the event that none of the names submitted by Consultant are 

acceptable to Agency, or if for any reason the Arbitrator selected in 
Step (a) is unable to serve, the Agency shall submit to Consultant a 
list of five (5) names of persons acceptable to Agency for appointment 
as Arbitrator. The Consultant shall, in turn, have seven (7) calendar 
days in which to determine if one such person is acceptable. 

 
c. If after Steps (a) and (b), the parties are unable to mutually agree upon 

a neutral Arbitrator, the matter of selection of an Arbitrator shall be 
submitted to the San Bernardino County Superior Court pursuant to 
Code of Civil Procedure Section 1281.6, or its successor.  The costs 
of arbitration, including but not limited to reasonable attorneys' fees, 
shall be recoverable by the party prevailing in the arbitration.  If this 
arbitration is appealed to a court pursuant to the procedure under 
California Code of Civil Procedure Section 1294, et seq., or their suc-
cessor, the costs of arbitration shall also include court costs associat-
ed with such appeals, including but not limited to reasonable 
attorneys' fees which shall be recoverable by the prevailing party. 

 
4. Association in Mediation/Arbitration:  The Agency may join the Consultant in 

mediation or arbitration commenced by a Consultant on the Project pursuant 
to Public Contracts Code Sections 20104 et seq.  Such association shall be 
initiated by written notice from the Agency's representative to the Consultant. 

 
11. OWNERSHIP OF MATERIALS AND DOCUMENTS/CONFIDENTIALITY:  The Agency 

retains ownership of any, and all, partial or complete reports, drawings, plans, notes, 
computations, lists, and/or other materials, documents, information, or data prepared by 
the Consultant and/or the Consultant's SubConsultant(s) pertaining to this Contract.  Said 
materials and documents are confidential and shall be available to the Agency from the 
moment of their preparation, and the Consultant shall deliver them to the Agency whenever 
requested to do so by the Project Manager and/or Agency representative.  The Consultant 
agrees that all documents shall not be made available to any individual or organization, 
private or public, without the prior written consent of an Agency representative. 

 
12. TITLE AND RISK OF LOSS: 
 

A. Documentation:  Title to the Documentation shall pass to the Agency when 
prepared; however, a copy may be retained by Consultant for its records and internal 
use.  Consultant shall retain such Documentation in a controlled access file, and 
shall not reveal, display, or disclose the contents of the Documentation to others 
without the prior written authorization of the Agency or for the performance of Work 
related to the Scope of Work described in this Contract. 

 
B. Material:  Title to all Material, field or research equipment, and laboratory models, 

procured or fabricated under the Contract shall pass to the Agency when procured 
or fabricated, and such title shall be free and clear of any and all encumbrances.  



 

 

4600002980  (RW)                                                                                                             Page 10 of 12 

11/23/2020 

Consultant shall have risk of loss of any Material or Agency-owned equipment of 
which it has custody. 

 
C. Disposition:  Consultant shall dispose of items to which the Agency has title as 

directed, in writing, by the Project Manager and/or an Agency representative.  
 
13. PROPRIETARY RIGHTS: 
 

A. Rights and Ownership: Agency's rights to inventions, discoveries, trade secrets, 
patents, copyrights, and other intellectual property, including the Information and 
Documentation, and revisions thereto (hereinafter collectively referred to as 
"Proprietary Rights"), used or developed by Consultant in the performance of the 
Work, shall be governed by the following provisions: 
 
1. Proprietary Rights conceived, developed, or reduced to practice by 

Consultant in the performance of the Work shall be the property of Agency, 
and Consultant shall cooperate with all appropriate requests to assign and 
transfer same to Agency. 

  
2. If Proprietary Rights conceived, developed, or reduced to practice by 

Consultant prior to the performance of the Work are used in and become 
integral with the Work, or are necessary for Agency to have complete control 
of the Work, Consultant shall grant to Agency a non-exclusive, irrevocable, 
royalty-free license, as may be required by Agency for the complete control 
of the Work, including the right to reproduce, correct, repair, replace, 
maintain, translate, publish, use, modify, copy or dispose of any or all of the 
Work and grant sublicenses to others with respect to the Work. 

 
3. If the Work includes the Proprietary Rights of others, Consultant shall 

procure, at no additional cost to Agency, all necessary licenses regarding 
such Proprietary Rights so as to allow Agency the complete control of the 
Work, including the right to reproduce, correct, repair, replace, maintain, 
translate, publish, use, modify, copy, or dispose of any or all of the Work; and 
to grant sublicenses to others with respect to the Work.  All such licenses 
shall be in writing and shall be irrevocable and royalty-free to Agency. 

 
14. NOTICES:  Any notice may be served upon either party by delivering it in person, or by 

depositing it in a United States Mail deposit box with the postage thereon fully prepaid, and 
addressed to the party at the address set forth below: 

 
     Agency: Mr. Warren T. Green 
  Manager of Contracts, Procurement, and Risk Services 
 Inland Empire Utilities Agency, a Municipal Water District 
 P.O. Box 9020 
 Chino Hills, CA 91709 
 
 



 

 

4600002980  (RW)                                                                                                             Page 11 of 12 

11/23/2020 

 Consultant: Mr. J. Scott Tiedemann 
  Managing Partner 
  Liebert Cassidy Whitmore 
  6033 W. Century Blvd. 5th Floor 
  Los Angeles, California 90045 
 
 Any notice given pursuant to this section shall be deemed effective in the case of personal 

delivery, upon receipt thereof, or, in the case of mailing, at the moment of deposit in the 
course of transmission through the United States Postal Service. 

 
15. SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS:  All of the terms, conditions and provisions of this Contract 

shall take effect to the benefit of and be binding upon the Agency, the Consultant, and their 
respective successors and assigns. No assignment of the duties or benefits of the 
Consultant under this Contract may be assigned, transferred, or otherwise disposed of, 
without the prior written consent of the Agency; and any such purported or attempted 
assignment, transfer, or disposal without the prior written consent of the Agency shall be 
null, void, and of no legal effect whatsoever. 
 

16. PUBLIC RECORDS POLICY:  Information made available to the Agency may be subject 
to the California Public Records Act (Government Code Section 6250 et seq.)  The 
Agency’s use and disclosure of its records are governed by this Act.  The Agency shall use 
its best efforts to notify Consultant of any requests for disclosure of any documents 
pertaining to this work. In the event of litigation concerning disclosure of information 
Consultant considers exempt from disclosure; (e.g., Trade Secret, Confidential, or 
Proprietary) Agency shall act as a stakeholder only, holding the information until 
otherwise ordered by a court or other legal process.  If Agency is required to defend an 
action arising out of a Public Records Act request for any of the information Consultant 
has marked “Confidential,” “Proprietary,” or “Trade Secret,” Consultant shall defend and 
indemnify Agency from all liability, damages, costs, and expenses, in any action or 
proceeding arising under the California Public Records Act. 

 

17. RIGHT TO AUDIT:  The Agency reserves the right to review and/or audit all Consultant’s 
records related to the Work.  The option to review and/or audit may be exercised during the 
term of the Contract, upon termination, upon completion of the Contract, or at any time 
thereafter up to twelve (12) months after final payment has been made to the Consultant.  
The Consultant shall make all records and related documentation available within three (3) 
working days after said records are requested by the Agency. 

   
18. INTEGRATION:  The Contract Documents represent the entire Contract made and entered 

into by and between the Agency and the Consultant as to those matters contained in this 
contract.  No prior oral or written understanding shall be of any force or effect with respect 
to those matters covered by the Contract Documents.  This Contract may not be modified, 
altered, or amended except by written mutual agreement by the Agency and the 
Consultant. 

 
19. GOVERNING LAW:  This Contract is to be governed by and constructed in accordance 

with the laws of the State of California, in the County of San Bernardino. 



 

 

4600002980  (RW)                                                                                                             Page 12 of 12 

11/23/2020 

 
20. TERMINATION FOR CONVENIENCE:  The Agency reserves and has the right to 

immediately suspend, cancel or terminate this Contract at any time upon written notice to 
the Consultant.  In the event of such termination, the Agency shall pay Consultant for all 
authorized and Consultant-invoiced services up to the date of such termination, as 
approved by the Project Manager. 

 
21. FORCE MAJEURE:  Neither party shall hold the other responsible for the effects of acts 

occurring beyond their control; e.g., war, riots, strikes, natural disasters, etcetera. 
 
22. NOTICE TO PROCEED:  No services shall be performed or provided under this Contract 

unless and until this document has been properly signed by all responsible parties and a 
notice to proceed has been issued to the Consultant by the Project Manager. 
 

23. AUTHORITY TO EXECUTE CONTRACT:  The Signatories, below, each represent, 
warrant, and covenant that they have the full authority and right to enter into this Contract 
on behalf of the separate entities shown below. 

 
24. DELIVERY OF DOCUMENTS:  The Parties to this Contract and the individuals named to 

facilitate the realization of its intent, with the execution of the Contract, authorize the delivery 
of documents via facsimile, via email, and via portable document format (PDF) and 
covenant agreement to be bound by such electronic versions. 
 

25. AGENCY-PROVIDED INFORMATION AND SERVICES: The Agency shall furnish 
Consultant available studies, reports and other data pertinent to Consultant’s services; 
obtain or authorize Consultant to obtain or provide additional reports and data as required; 
furnish to Consultant services of others required for the performance of Consultant’s 
services hereunder, all subject to Agency’s prior approval, and Consultant shall be entitled 
to use and rely upon all such information and services provided by the Agency or others in 
performing Consultant’s services under this Agreement. 
 

26. THIRD PARTIES: The services to be performed by Consultant are intended solely for the 
benefit of the Agency. No person or entity not a signatory to this Agreement shall be entitled 
to rely on Consultant’s performance of its services hereunder, and no right to assert a claim 
against Consultant by assignment of indemnify rights or otherwise shall accrue to a third 
party as a result of this Agreement of the performance of Consultant’s services hereunder.  

 
The parties hereto have caused the Contract to be entered as of the day and year written at the 
top of Page 1. 
 
INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY: LIEBERT CASSIDY WHITMORE: 
(A MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT) 

 
 
_______________________   ________ _________________________   ________ 
Shivaji Deshmukh                       (Date)      J. Scott Tiedemann                          (Date) 
General Manager  Managing Partner 



Finance and Administration Committee 

3A 
INFORMATION 

ITEM 



General Manager

Budget Impact 

January 20, 2021

2013 RMPU Financing Options

As required by the 2010 Recharge Master Plan Update and its 2013 Amendment (2013 RMPU),
IEUA and the Chino Basin Watermaster (CBWM) committed to complete a Financing Plan for
the funding of the RMPU projects. The 2013 RMPU is a comprehensive program of recharge
projects needed to enhance water supplies and protect and enhance water quality in the Chino
Basin. The Financing Plan developed by IEUA and CBWM identifies the preferred strategy to
obtain grant funding and low interest loans for the funding of all RMPU projects. To date, IEUA
has been very successful in securing grant funding and significantly lowering the unit cost for
the basin improvements. To further reduce the financing costs, IEUA has applied for low
interest State Revolving Fund (SRF) loans. Currently the standard maturity for SRF loans is 30
years at a fixed rate of 0.90%. However, due to a recent change by the State Water Resources
Control Board to the prepayment provisions which could potentially reduce IEUA’s ability to
refund/refinance these loans in the future should it be necessary or advantageous to do so, staff
recommends SRF loans with a shorter maturity of 10, 15, or 20-years at a discounted fixed
interest rate of 0.65%. Staff will be presenting these maturity options to the CBWM committees
in January. The associated SRF loan agreements will be brought to the IEUA Board of
Directors for final approval and execution.

This is an information item only.

01/13/21Finance & Administration

Christina Valencia, Executive Manager of Finance & Administration/AGM

N N

Executive Contact:



Page 2 of 

Business Goal: 

:

Environmental :

The 2013 RMPU basin improvement projects and pursuit of grants and low-interest financing
align with the Agency's mission to promote sustainable groundwater and increasing local water
supplies in a regional cost-effective manner.

On May 18, 2016, the Board of Directors adopted Resolution No. 2016-5-4, establishing its
intention to apply for Clean Water State Revolving Funds (CWSRF) for the preliminary design
and planning for the Recharge Master Plan Update (RMPU).
On May 18, 2016, the Board of Directors adopted Resolution No. 2016-5-5, dedicating certain
revenues in connection with preliminary design and planning for the RMPU and associated
CWSRF financing from the State Water Resources Control Board (SWRCB).

Attachment 1 - Background
Attachment 2 - PowerPoint

Not Applicable

21020



 
   Page 1 of 2 

Background 

Subject:  2013 RMPU Projects Financing Options   
 

In 2013, IEUA and the Chino Basin Watermaster (CBWM) approved the 2013 Amendment to the 
2010 Chino Basin Recharge Master Plan Update (2013 RMPU).  The 2013 Amendment was 
prepared by IEUA, CBWM, the Chino Basin Water Conservation District (CBWCD) and their 
respective member agencies, per the direction of the Court.  

The 2013 RMPU is a comprehensive program of recharge projects developed to enhance water 
supplies and protect and enhance water quality in the Chino Basin. The 2013 Amendment 
evaluated 27 yield enhancement projects (i.e. capital projects) and recommended the 
implementation of 11 of the yield enhancement projects over a six year period. These 11 projects 
were estimated to develop approximately 6,781 acre-feet per year (AFY) of stormwater recharge 
and 4,936 AFY of recycled water recharge, at an estimated capital cost of $57 million. During 
planning and preliminary design, only the six projects summarized in Table 1 were approved for 
implementations by the CBWM parties.   

As required by the 2013 RMPU, IEUA and CBWM developed a Financing Plan that identifies the 
preferred strategy to mutually obtain grant funding and low interest loans for the funding of all 
RMPU projects.  In 2016, IEUA entered into the Master Recharge Facilities Financing Agreement 
with the CBWM and the Chino Basin Regional Financing Authority (Authority) to facilitate the 
financing of the 2013 RMPU.

Table 1:  2013 Recharge Master Plan Update Projects 
 

 
CBWM and IEUA cost share is 50%/50% for recycled water recharge projects, and 100% CBWM cost share 
for only stormwater recharge projects.  

As highlighted in Table 1, IEUA has been very successful in securing grant funding and 
significantly lowering the unit cost for the basin improvements.  To further reduce the financing 
costs, IEUA applied for low interest Clean Water State Revolving Fund (SRF) loans administered 
by the State Water Resources Control Board (SWRCB).  To date, an SRF loan agreement has been 



Page 2 of 2 
 
executed for the San Sevaine Basin Improvement project at a fixed interest rate of 1.80 percent.  
SRF loan agreements are pending for all the other projects, excluding the Victoria Basin project 
which was funded on a pay-go basis.   
 
Currently, the standard maturity of an SRF loan is 30 years at a current fixed rate of 0.90 percent.  
Recently the SWRCB has introduced changes to the prepayment provisions which could 
potentially reduce IEUA’s ability to refund/refinance these loans in the future should it be 
necessary or advantageous to do so. In order to reduce the risk and allow for the refunding or 
refinancing of these loans earlier in the future, staff will be recommending to CBWM consider a 
shorter maturity of 10, 15, or 20-years at a discounted fixed interest rate of 0.65 percent for the 
remaining RMPU project balance. 
 
Staff will be presenting these financing options to the CBWM committees in January.  The 
associated SRF loan agreements will be brought to the IEUA Board of Directors for final approval 
and execution.   
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



2013 Recharge Master Plan Update
Financing Options

Christina Valencia
Executive Manager of Finance & 

Administration/AGM
January 2021



2013 Recharge Master Plan Update 
(2013 RMPU) 

2013 RMPU recommended construction of new recharge facilities 
to enhance regional water self-reliance: 

• 11 new recharge projects were initially planned for construction
• During planning and preliminary design, only 6 projects were approved for 

implementation
• When fully implemented, total yield is estimated to be increased by 

approximately 11,900 acre-feet-per year (AFY)
o At an estimated unit cost of $395/AF for storm water captured 
o May reduce imported water demand between 4,800 AFY and 11,900 AFY

2



Recharge Master Plan Update (RMPU) – Projects/Benefits

3

Wineville Basin

210 FWY

10 FWY

210 FWY

15 FWY

City of
Montclair

City of
Ontario

Montclair Basin

Lower Day Basin

Jurupa Basin

City of
Fontana

City of
Rancho 

Cucamonga

Victoria Basin

RP-3 Basin

San Sevaine Basin

Basin Projects Additional Recharge Goal
Stormwater Recycled Water

San Sevaine Basin 642 4,100
Lower Day Basin 993 -
Victoria Basin 75 120
Montclair Basins 96 -

Wineville, Jurupa, RP3 Basins 2,921 2,905

Total: 4,727 7,125



Funding Summary

4

Remaining cost to be financed with a Clean Water State Revolving Fund(SRF) Loan or Pay-Go 



Benefit of Grant Funding

• Over 50 percent of total costs supported by grants, resulting in a 
significant reduction to: 
– Estimated unit cost
– Pay-go amount supported by cash contributions, and
– New debt amount needed to support the remaining balance.

5



State Revolving Fund (SRF) Loans

• Agency will leverage low-interest SRF loans to further reduce unit 
cost:
– San Sevaine Basin Improvements project

• 30-year maturity at a fixed interest rate of 1.8 percent
– Current options for the remaining 2013 RMPU projects

• 30-year maturity at a fixed interest rate of 0.9 percent
• 20, 15, or 10 year maturities at a discounted fixed interest rate of 0.65 percent

6



Next Steps

• A recent change to SRF loan prepayment provisions may reduce 
IEUA’s ability to prepay or refinance loans should it be necessary 
or advantageous to do so
– To mitigate this risk, staff will be recommending to CBWM a shorter-term 

maturity for the remaining 2013 RMPU projects
– 20, 15, or 10-year maturities at a discounted fixed interest rate of 0.65 

percent
• Recommendation to CBWM will be presented in January 2021
• Final SRF loan agreements will be brought to the IEUA Board of 

Directors for approval.

7



Questions

The 2013 RMPU basin improvement projects and pursuit of grants and low-interest 
financing align with the Agency's mission to promote sustainable groundwater and 

increasing local water supplies in a regional cost-effective manner.

8

aaaaaaaaaaassssssiiiiiiiinnnnnn iiiiiiiimmmmmmppppppprrrrrroooooovvvvvvveeeeeeeeeemmmmmmmmmmmmmmmeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeennnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnntttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttt pppppppppppppppppppppppppppppppppppppppprrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrooooooooooooooooooooooooojjjjjjjjjjjjjjjjjjjjjjjjjjjjeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeecccccccccccccccccccccccccctttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttsssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssss aaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaannnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnndddddddddddddddddddddddddddd ppppppppppppppppuuuuuuuuurrrrrrrssssssuuuuuuiiiiiiiittttttt ooooooffffffff gggggggrrrrrraaaaaaaaaaaa
tttttttthhhhhhheeeeee AAAAAAAggggggeeeeeennnnnnnccccccyyyyyyyyyy'''''''''ssssss mmmmmmmmmiiiiiiiiisssssssiiiioooonnnn ttttoooo pppprrrroooommmmmooootttttttttttteeeeeeeeee sssssuuuuuuussssssttttttttaaaaaaiiiiiiinnnnnnaaaaaabbbbbbbbb
ocal water supplies in a regional cost-effec

8



 Finance and Administration Committee 

3B 
INFORMATION 

ITEM 



General Manager

Budget Impact 

January 20, 2021

Treasurer's Report of Financial Affairs

The Treasurer's Report of Financial Affairs for the month ended November 30, 2020 is
submitted in a format consistent with the State requirements.

For the month of November 2020, total cash, investments, and restricted deposits of
$520,114,066 reflects an increase of $3,263,836 compared to the total of $516,850,230 reported
for October 2020. The increase was primarily due to property tax receipts. As a result, the
average days cash on hand for the month ended November 30, 2020 increased from 265 days to
282 days.

The unrestricted Agency investment portfolio yield in November 2020 was 1.338 percent, a
decrease of 0.103 percent compared to the October 2020 yield of 1.441 percent. The decrease in
yield is attributed to current market conditions which decreased earning yields in liquid
investment accounts such as the Citizens Business Bank Repurchase, Local Agency Investment
Fund (LAIF) and California Asset Management Program (CAMP).

The Treasurer's Report of Financial Affairs for the month ended November 30, 2020 is an
information item for the Board of Director's review.

Interest earned on the Agency's investment portfolio increases the Agency's overall reserves.

01/13/21Finance & Administration

Christina Valencia, Executive Manager of Finance & Administration/AGM

N Y

Executive Contact:



Page 2 of 

Business Goal: 

:

Environmental :

The Treasurer's Report of Financial Affairs is consistent with the Agency's Business Goal of
Fiscal Responsibility in providing financial reporting that accounts for cash and investment
activities to fund operating requirements and to optimize investment earnings.

On December 16, 2020 the Board of Directors approved the Treasurer's Report of Financial
Affairs for the month ended October 31, 2020.

Attachment 1 - Background
Attachment 2 - PowerPoint
Attachment 3 - Treasurer's Report of Financial Affairs

Not Applicable

21001



 
   Page 1 of 2 

  
 
 

Background 

Subject: Treasurer’s Report of Financial Affairs 
  
 
The Treasurer’s Report of Financial Affairs for the month ended November 30, 2020 is submitted 
in a format consistent with State requirements. The monthly report denotes investment transactions 
that have been executed in accordance with the Agency’s Investment Policy (Resolution No. 2020-
4-3). 
 
Agency total cash, investments, and restricted deposits for the month of November 2020 was 
$520.1 million, an increase of $3.3 million compared to the $516.8 million reported for the month 
ended October 2020. The increase was primarily due to receipt of $6.8 million of property taxes. 
 
In November the U.S Treasury yields stayed relatively steady across the yield curve and 
employment growth slowed amid the latest Coronavirus surge. PFM continues to focus on 
investment discipline and maintaining a neutral duration strategy to ensure current investments 
align with the Agency’s Investment Policy’s goals of preservation of capital in the overall 
portfolio, provide sufficient liquidity to meet to operating requirements, and attain a market rate 
of return throughout budgetary and economic cycles. 
 
Table 1 represents the unrestricted Agency investment portfolio by authorized investment and 
duration, with a total portfolio amount of $154.6 million. The Agency portfolio excludes cash and 
restricted deposits in the amount of $365.5 million held by member agencies and with fiscal agents, 
including $230 million in capitalized interest and debt proceeds for the RP-5 Expansion Project. 
 
 

Table 1: Agency Portfolio 
 

Authorized Investments 
Allowable 

Threshold ($ 
million or %) 

Investment Value as of  
November 30, 2020  

($ million) Average 
Yield % 

Portfolio% 
(Unrestricted) Under 

1 Year 
1-3 

Years 
Over 3 
Years 

Total 

LAIF*- Unrestricted $75 $41.9 $0.0 $0.0 $41.9 0.576% 27.13% 

CAMP** – Unrestricted n/a 10.6   10.6 0.140% 6.83% 
Citizens Business Bank – 

Sweep 
40% 7.0   7.0 0.250% 4.53% 

Sub-Total Agency Managed $59.5 $0.0 $0.0 $59.5 0.460% 38.49% 
Brokered Certificates of 
Deposit 

30% $0.8 $3.2 $0.0 $4.0 1.69% 2.56% 

Medium Term Notes 30% 1.1 10.7 7.0 18.8 2.374% 12.14% 
Municipal Bonds 10%  0.2 1.7 1.9  0.979% 1.25% 
US Treasury Notes n/a 1.9 26.1 7.0 35.0 2.468% 22.65% 
US Gov’t Securities  n/a 2.1 16.7 16.6 35.4 1.126% 22.91% 
Sub-Total PFM Managed $5.9 $56.9 $32.3 $95.1 1.887% 61.51% 

Total  $65.4 $56.9 $32.3 $154.6 1.338% 100.0% 
*LAIF – Local Agency Investment Fund 
**CAMP – California Asset Management Program 
+/- due to rounding  
 



Page 2 of 2 
 
 

Figure 1: Cash, Investments, and Restricted Deposits 
 

 
 

Average days cash on hand is calculated by using the monthly ending balance of unrestricted cash 
and cash equivalents divided by disbursements associated with operating expenses, debt service 
costs, and capital expenditures. The average days cash on hand for the month ended November 
2020 increased from 265 days to 282 days as shown in Figure 2. 
 

Figure 2: Days Cash on Hand – 12 Month Rolling Average 
 

 
 

Monthly cash and investment summaries are available on the Agency’s website at: 
https://www.ieua.org/read-our-reports/cash-and-investment/ 
 

Includes 2020B Note 
Revenue proceeds 



Treasurer’s Report of Financial Affairs for 
Month Ended November 30, 2020

Javier Chagoyen-Lazaro
Manager of Finance and Accounting

January 2021



Agency Liquidity

2

• Decrease in overall yield is attributed to lower yields in liquid investments, such as the Citizens Business Bank 
Repurchase account, Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) and California Asset Management Program (CAMP).

Description November
$ Millions

October
$ Millions

Increase / (Decrease) 
$ Millions

Investment Portfolio $154.6 $142.0 $12.6

Cash and Restricted Deposits $365.5 $374.8 ($9.3)

Total Investments, Cash, and Restricted Deposits $520.1 $516.8 $3.3

Investment Portfolio Yield 1.338% 1.441% (0.103%)

Weighted Average Duration (Years) 1.52 1.59 (0.07)

Average Cash on Hand (Days) 282 262 20

Monthly cash and investment summaries available at: https://www.ieua.org/read-our-reports/cash-and-investment/



Agency Investment Position

3

Authorized Investments
Allowable 
Threshold

($ million or %)

Under 1 
Year

1 – 3 
Years

Over 3 
Years Total Average 

Yield %
Portfolio % 

(Unrestricted)

Local Agency Investment Fund $75 $41.9 $0.0 $0.0 $41.9 0.576% 27.13%

California Asset Management Program n/a 10.6 10.6 0.140% 6.83%

Citizens Business Bank – Sweep 40% 7.0 7.0 0.250% 4.53%

Sub-Total Agency Managed $59.5 $0.0 $0.0 $59.5 0.460% 38.49%

Brokered Certificates of Deposit (CD) 30% $0.8 $3.2 $0.0 $4.0 1.690% 2.56%

Medium Term Notes 30% 1.1 10.7 7.0 18.8 2.374% 12.14%

Municipal Bonds 10% 0.2 1.7 1.9 0.979% 1.25%

US Treasury Notes n/a 1.9 26.1 7.0 35.0 2.468% 22.65%

US Government Securities n/a 2.1 16.7 16.6 35.4 1.126% 22.91%

Sub-Total PFM Managed $5.9 $56.9 $32.3 $95.1 1.887% 61.51%

Total $65.4 $56.9 $32.3 $154.6 1.338% 100.0%



Portfolio Yield Comparison

4
Source: 2020 1st Qtr. Planning Update



Questions

5 Source: Adopted TYCIP

The Treasurer’s Report of 
Financial Affairs is consistent 

with the Agency’s business goal 
of fiscal responsibility.



 All investment transactions have been executed in accordance with the criteria stated in
 the Agency's Investment Policy (Resolution No. 2020-4-3) adopted by the Inland Empire
 Utilities Agency's Board of Directors during its regular meeting held on April 15, 2020.

 The funds anticipated to be available during the next six-month period are expected to be
 sufficient to meet all foreseen expenditures during the period.

* A Municipal Water District

TREASURER'S REPORT OF FINANCIAL AFFAIRS

For the Month Ended November 30, 2020



INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY
Cash and Investment Summary

 Month Ended 
November 30, 2020

November October Variance

$2,417,880 $1,984,326 $433,554

Investments
 Agency Managed
Citizens Business Bank (CBB) Repurchase (Sweep) $6,998,421 $7,784,150 ($785,729)
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) 41,951,171 28,264,296 $13,686,875
California Asset Management Program (CAMP) 10,555,628 10,554,453 $1,175
Total Agency Managed Investments 59,505,220 46,602,899 $12,902,321

PFM Managed
Certificates of Deposit $3,955,000 $3,955,000 $0
Municipal Bonds 1,936,588 1,741,617 $194,971
Medium Term Notes 18,770,424 18,772,346 ($1,922)
U.S. Treasury Notes 35,023,665 36,401,238 ($1,377,573)
U.S. Government Sponsored Entities 35,430,924 34,540,196 $890,728
Total PFM Managed Investments 95,116,601 95,410,397 ($293,796)

Total Investments $154,621,821 $142,013,296 $12,608,525

Total Cash and Investments Available to the Agency $157,039,701 $143,997,622 $13,042,079

Restricted Deposits
CAMP Water Connection Reserve $19,935,891 $24,179,760 ($4,243,869)
LAIF Self Insurance Reserve 6,574,369    6,561,244     13,125  
Bond and Note Accounts 34,191,796    37,889,838  ($3,698,042)
2020B Construction Accounts 196,759,871    196,758,702  $1,169

84,261,326    87,557,587  ($3,296,261)

21,039,894    19,603,153  $1,436,741

Escrow Deposits 311,218 302,324 $8,894

Total Restricted Deposits $363,074,365 $372,852,608 ($9,778,243)

Total Cash, Investments, and Restricted Deposits $520,114,066 $516,850,230 $3,263,836
**Total reported as of September 2020 less Capital Call receipts through November

Cash, Bank Deposits, and Bank Investment Accounts

Capital Capacity Reimbursement Account (CCRA) Deposits Held by Member Agencies**
California Employers' Retirement Benefit Trust Account - CERBT (Other Post 
       Employment Benefits - OPEB)

1



INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY
Cash and Investment Summary

 Month Ended 
November 30, 2020

Cash, Bank Deposits, and Bank Investment Accounts

CBB Demand Account (Negative balance offset by CBB Sweep Balance) $1,094,297
CBB Payroll Account -    
CBB Workers' Compensation Account 39,928   

Subtotal Demand Deposits $1,134,225

Other Cash and Bank Accounts
Petty Cash $2,250

Subtotal Other Cash $2,250

US Bank Pre-Investment Money Market Account $1,281,405

Total Cash and Bank Accounts $2,417,880

Unrestricted Investments

CBB Repurchase (Sweep) Investments
Fannie Mae $1,877,517

Subtotal CBB Repurchase (Sweep) $6,998,421

Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF)
  LAIF Fund $41,951,171

Subtotal Local Agency Investment Fund $41,951,171

California Asset Management Program (CAMP)
  Short Term $10,555,628

Subtotal CAMP $10,555,628

Subtotal Agency Managed Investment Accounts $59,505,220

Brokered Certificates of Deposit
Brokered Certificates of Deposit $3,955,000

Subtotal Brokered Certificates of Deposit $3,955,000

2



INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY
Cash and Investment Summary

 Month Ended 
November 30, 2020

Unrestricted Investments Continued

Municipal Bonds

Subtotal State and Local Municipal Bonds $1,936,588
Subtotal State and Municipal Bonds $1,936,588

Medium Term Notes

Hershey Company $334,965
American Honda Finance 793,772    
Bank of NY Mellon 1,390,988  
American Express 795,313    
Walt Disney Company 809,725    
Paccar Financial Corp 929,759    
Visa Inc 813,005    
Bank of America 813,553    
Oracle Corp 1,405,828  
Amazon Inc 929,805    
Burlington North Santa Fe Corp 795,718    
Bank of NY Mellon 1,382,112  
Apple Inc. Corp. 563,750    
UnitedHealth Group Inc 744,884    
Pfizer Inc 1,270,796  

  Walmart Inc 1,471,069  
  JP Morgan Chase 570,000    
 Toyota Motor 317,740    
 Toyota Motor 428,697    
 Novartis Capital 1,469,609  

Bristol Myers 739,336    
Subtotal Medium Term Notes $18,770,424

3



INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY
Cash and Investment Summary

 Month Ended 
November 30, 2020

U.S. Treasury Notes

Treasury Note $35,023,665
Subtotal U.S. Treasury Notes $35,023,665

Unrestricted Investments Continued

U.S. Government Sponsored Entities
Fannie Mae Bank $20,212,145
Freddie Mac Bank 8,323,845  
Federal Home Loan Bank 6,894,934  

Subtotal U.S. Government Sponsored Entities $35,430,924

Subtotal PFM Managed Investment Accounts $95,116,601

Total Investments $154,621,821

Restricted Deposits

 Investment Pool Accounts
CAMP - Water Connection Reserves $19,935,891
LAIF - Self Insurance Fund Reserves 6,574,369  

Subtotal Investment Pool Accounts $26,510,260

Bond and Note Accounts
2017A Debt Service Accounts $430
2020A Debt Service Accounts 1,185,320  
2020B Capitalized Interest 33,001,187    
2020B Debt Service Accounts 4,859  

Subtotal Bond and Note Accounts $34,191,796

2020B Construction Project Accounts

LAIF Construction Project Accounts $186,249,139
CAMP Construction Project Accounts 10,510,732        

Subtotal 2020B Construction Project Accounts $196,759,871

4



INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY
Cash and Investment Summary

 Month Ended 
November 30, 2020

Restricted Deposits Continued  

CCRA Deposits Held by Member Agencies
City of Chino $13,444,056
Cucamonga Valley Water District 12,195,743                            
City of Fontana 14,219,214                            
City of Montclair 3,650,734                               
City of Ontario 28,721,581                            
City of Chino Hills 6,103,613                               
City of Upland 5,926,385                               

Subtotal CCRA Deposits Held by Member Agencies** $84,261,326

CalPERS 
CERBT Account (OPEB) $21,039,894

Subtotal CalPERS Accounts $21,039,894

Escrow Deposits
Stanek Construction $311,218

Subtotal Escrow Deposits $311,218

Total Restricted Deposits $363,074,365

Total Cash, Investments, and Restricted Deposits as of November 30, 2020 $520,114,066

Total Cash, Investments, and Restricted Deposits as of 11/30/2020 $520,114,066
Less: Total Cash, Investments, and Restricted Deposits as of 10/31/20 516,850,230                          

Total Monthly Increase (Decrease) $3,263,836

**Total reported as of September 2020 less Capital Call receipts through November

5



INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY
Cash and Investment Summary

 Month Ended 
November 30, 2020

Par Cost Basis Term November Maturity Market

Amount Amount (Days) Value Date Value 

Cash, Bank Deposits, and Bank Investment Accounts

Citizens Business Bank (CBB)
Demand Account $1,094,297 $1,094,297 N/A $1,094,297 N/A N/A $1,094,297
Payroll Checking 0 0 N/A 0 N/A N/A 0
Workers' Compensation Account 39,928 39,928                    N/A 39,928 N/A N/A 39,928                    

Subtotal CBB Accounts $1,134,225 $1,134,225 $1,134,225 $1,134,225

US Bank (USB)
Custodial Money Market (Investment Mgmt.) $976,390 $976,390 N/A $976,390 0.02% N/A $976,390
Custodial Money Market (Debt Service) 305,015 305,015 N/A 305,015 0.02% N/A 305,015

Subtotal USB Account $1,281,405 $1,281,405 $1,281,405 0.02% $1,281,405

Petty Cash $2,250 $2,250 N/A $2,250 N/A N/A $2,250

Total Cash, Bank Deposits and
Bank Investment Accounts $2,417,880 $2,417,880 $2,417,880 $2,417,880

Investments

CBB Daily Repurchase (Sweep) Accounts
Fannie Mae $1,877,517 $1,877,517 N/A $1,877,517 0.25% N/A $1,877,517
Freddie Mac 5,120,904 5,120,904 5,120,904 0.25% N/A 5,120,904

Subtotal CBB Repurchase Accounts $6,998,421 $6,998,421 $6,998,421 0.25% $6,998,421

LAIF Accounts
Non-Restricted Funds $41,951,171 $41,951,171 N/A $41,951,171 0.576% N/A $41,951,171

Subtotal LAIF Accounts $41,951,171 $41,951,171 $41,951,171 0.576% $41,951,171

CAMP Accounts  
Non-Restricted Funds $10,555,628 $10,555,628 N/A $10,555,628 0.14% N/A $10,555,628

Subtotal CAMP Accounts $10,555,628 $10,555,628 $10,555,628 0.14% $10,555,628

Subtotal Agency Managed Investment Accounts $59,505,220 $59,505,220 $59,505,220 0.46% $59,505,220

% 
Yield to 

Maturity
% 

Coupon

6



INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY
Cash and Investment Summary

 Month Ended 
November 30, 2020

Par Cost Basis Term November Maturity Market

Amount Amount (Days) Value Date Value 

% 
Yield to 

Maturity
% 

Coupon
Investments (continued)

Brokered Certificates of Deposit (CDs)
Royal Bank of Canada NY 815,000    815,000   1095 815,000   3.24% 3.24% 06/07/21 828,240  
Credit Suisse NY 745,000    745,000   533 745,000   0.52% 0.52% 02/01/22 745,911  
Societe Generale NY 935,000    935,000   731 935,000   1.80% 1.80% 02/14/22 945,837  
Sumitomo Mitsui Bank 745,000    745,000   870 745,000   0.70% 0.70% 07/08/22 746,579  
DNB Bank ASA NY 715,000    715,000   1092 715,000   2.04% 2.03% 12/02/22 739,566  

Subtotal Brokered CDs $3,955,000 $3,955,000 $3,955,000 1.69% $4,006,133

US Treasury Note
US Treasury Note $271,000 $269,063 838 $270,512 2.125% 2.45% 06/30/21 $274,176
US Treasury Note 1,625,000  1,577,519    1323 1,611,937   1.750% 2.60% 11/30/21 1,651,152
US Treasury Note 1,220,000  1,180,350    1436 1,206,608   1.875% 2.75% 03/31/22 1,248,212
US Treasury Note 3,070,000  2,969,266    1336 3,033,431   1.875% 2.82% 03/31/22 3,140,994
US Treasury Note 3,790,000  3,678,225    1302 3,748,363   1.875% 2.75% 03/31/22 3,877,644
US Treasury Note 1,605,000  1,558,480    1474 1,588,746   1.875% 2.64% 04/30/22 1,644,373
US Treasury Note 1,300,000  1,252,570    1456 1,281,237   1.750% 2.72% 06/30/22 1,332,906
US Treasury Note 2,065,000  1,980,706    1577 2,029,294   1.750% 2.76% 09/30/22 2,125,337
US Treasury Note 894,000    864,177   1641 881,296   2.000% 2.80% 10/31/22 925,430
US Treasury Note 1,040,000  990,356   1580 1,015,147   1.750% 2.93% 01/31/23 1,075,750
US Treasury Note 310,000    293,289   1699 301,945   1.500% 2.74% 02/28/23 319,252
US Treasury Note 1,235,000  1,189,508    1508 1,209,358   1.500% 2.44% 03/31/23 1,273,208
US Treasury Note 2,000,000  1,899,453    1618 1,941,524   1.38% 2.58% 06/30/23 2,061,875
US Treasury Note 1,260,000  1,196,951    1630 1,222,403   1.25% 2.44% 07/31/23 1,295,831
US Treasury Note 650,000    667,088   1611 660,957   2.88% 2.25% 09/30/23 699,359
US Treasury Note 3,450,000  3,484,904    1713 3,471,986   2.75% 2.52% 11/15/23 3,710,367
US Treasury Note 2,525,000  2,479,826    1786 2,497,329   2.13% 2.52% 11/30/23 2,670,977
US Treasury Note 120,000    120,356   1795 120,223   2.63% 2.56% 12/31/23 128,944
US Treasury Note 2,345,000  2,355,534    1792 2,352,325   2.00% 1.90% 04/30/24 2,486,433
US Treasury Note 575,000    580,930   1824 579,249   2.00% 1.78% 06/30/24 611,117
US Treasury Note 1,000,000  1,016,172    1818 1,011,902   2.13% 1.78% 07/31/24 1,068,594
US Treasury Note 1,310,000  1,349,146    1824 1,340,025   2.13% 1.50% 09/30/24 1,402,928
US Treasury Note 1,100,000  1,135,965    1822 1,128,227   2.25% 1.57% 10/31/24 1,184,906
US Treasury Note 510,000    521,814   1823 519,641   2.13% 1.63% 11/30/24 547,453

Subtotal US Treasuries $35,270,000 $34,611,648 $35,023,665 2.47% $36,757,218

* Market Values provided by US Bank - Custodial Account Services

7



INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY
Cash and Investment Summary

 Month Ended 
November 30, 2020

Par Cost Basis Term November Maturity Market

Amount Amount (Days) Value Date Value 

% 
Yield to 

Maturity
% 

Coupon
Investments (continued)

U.S. Government Sponsored Entities
Freddie Mac Bond $230,000 $228,015 1,028 $229,851 2.38% 2.70% 02/16/21 $231,086
Federal Home Loan Bank 1,865,000              1,882,718              992 1,870,626             3.00% 2.63% 10/12/21 1,911,028
Fannie Mae Bond 795,000                  794,428                 1,096 794,788                 2.63% 2.65% 01/11/22 816,833
Federal Home Loan Bank 1,725,000              1,724,552              1,001 1,724,655             0.25% 0.26% 06/03/22 1,727,113
Fannie Mae Bond 890,000                  886,903                 1,096 888,180                 1.38% 1.49% 09/06/22 908,904
Federal Home Loan Bank 1,280,000              1,277,645              1,092 1,278,257             1.38% 1.44% 02/17/23 1,313,691
Fannie Mae Bond 1,360,000              1,355,906              365 1,356,628             0.25% 0.35% 05/22/23 1,361,622
Freddie Mac Bond 1,450,000              1,444,461              1,810 1,447,154             2.75% 2.83% 06/19/23 1,543,553
Freddie Mac Bond 1,330,000              1,326,116              1,095 1,326,677             0.25% 0.35% 06/26/23 1,331,306
Fannie Mae Bond 1,875,000              1,870,969              1,095 1,871,499             0.25% 0.32% 07/10/23 1,876,382
Fannie Mae Bond 645,000                  645,000                 1,092 645,000                 0.36% 0.36% 08/18/23 645,855
Freddie Mac Bond 885,000                  884,097                 1,098 884,181                 0.25% 0.28% 08/24/23 885,682
Fannie Mae Bond 855,000                  853,273                 1,741 853,993                 2.88% 2.92% 09/12/23 917,602
Fannie Mae Bond 1,820,000              1,803,274              1,772 1,810,419             2.88% 3.08% 09/12/23 1,953,259
Freddie Mac Bond 970,000                  969,855                 1,098 969,863                 0.30% 0.31% 09/28/23 969,870
Federal Home Loan Bank 870,000                  895,642                 1,772 885,947                 3.38% 2.72% 12/08/23 951,409
Fannie Mae Bond 680,000                  677,470                 1,823 678,389                 2.50% 2.58% 02/05/24 727,911
Federal Home Loan Bank 190,000                  189,327                 1,824 189,569                 2.50% 2.58% 02/13/24 203,480
Fannie Mae Bond 2,055,000              2,130,234              1,769 2,118,708             1.63% 0.85% 01/07/25 2,159,369
Freddie Mac Bond 1,215,000              1,214,064              1,825 1,214,214             1.50% 1.52% 02/12/25 1,271,321
Federal Home Loan Bank 950,000                  945,288                 1,824 945,880                 0.50% 0.60% 04/14/25 954,296
Fannie Mae Bond 495,000                  496,629                 1,792 496,457                 0.63% 0.56% 04/22/25 499,940
Fannie Mae Bond 1,275,000              1,272,374              1,824 1,272,692             0.63% 0.67% 04/22/25 1,287,724
Fannie Mae Bond 1,425,000              1,432,296              1,782 1,431,563             0.63% 0.52% 04/22/25 1,439,221
Fannie Mae Bond 240,000                  241,126                 1,716 241,088                 0.50% 0.40% 06/17/25 240,696
Fannie Mae Bond 995,000                  996,473                 1,693 996,443                 0.50% 0.47% 06/17/25 997,884
Fannie Mae Bond 1,435,000              1,441,931              1,778 1,441,467             0.50% 0.40% 06/17/25 1,439,159
Fannie Mae Bond 1,480,000              1,476,936              1,824 1,477,214             0.50% 0.54% 06/17/25 1,484,289
Freddie Mac Bond 895,000                  890,543                 1,824 890,863                 0.38% 0.48% 07/21/25 892,515
Fannie Mae Bond 950,000                  945,554                 1,824 945,788                 0.38% 0.47% 08/25/25 946,421
Freddie Mac Bond 1,365,000              1,360,891              1,824 1,361,042             0.38% 0.44% 09/23/25 1,359,128
Fannie Mae Bond 895,000                  891,796                 1,869 891,829                 0.50% 0.57% 11/07/25 897,813

Subtotal U.S. Gov't Sponsored Entities $35,385,000 $35,445,785 $35,430,924 1.13% $36,146,362

8



INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY
Cash and Investment Summary

 Month Ended 
November 30, 2020

Par Cost Basis Term November Maturity Market

Amount Amount (Days) Value Date Value 

% 
Yield to 

Maturity
% 

Coupon

Investments (continued)
Municipal Bonds

CA State Earthquake Authority Taxable Rev $195,000 $195,000 1060 $195,000 1.48% 1.48% 07/01/23 $196,303
Maryland State GO Bond 250,000                  249,930                 1457 249,936                 0.51% 0.52% 08/01/24 250,090                  
CA State Dept of Wtr Res 100,000                  100,000                 1578 100,000                 0.56% 0.56% 12/01/24 99,799                    
Univ. of CA Revenue Bond 90,000                    90,326                    1764 90,300                   0.88% 0.81% 05/15/25 90,828                    
Univ. of CA Revenue Bond 205,000                  205,000                 1764 205,000                 0.88% 0.88% 05/15/25 206,886                  
Florida State Board of Admin. Taxable Rev 520,000                  520,000                 1749 201,352                 1.26% 1.26% 07/01/25 204,030                  
Florida State Board of Admin. Taxable Rev 200,000                  201,414                 1749 520,000                 1.26% 1.11% 07/01/25 530,478                  
Los Angeles CCD CA Taxable GO Bonds 375,000                  375,000                 1725 375,000                 0.77% 0.77% 08/01/25 380,201                  

Subtotal State and Local Municipal Bonds $1,935,000 $1,936,670 $1,936,588 0.98% $1,958,615

Medium Term Notes
Hershey Company $335,000 $334,769 1101 $334,965 3.10% 3.12% 05/15/21 $339,219
American Honda Finance 800,000                  767,016                 1181 793,772                 1.65% 3.00% 07/12/21 806,552                  
Bank of NY Mellon 1,400,000              1,371,048              1391 1,390,988             2.60% 3.18% 02/07/22 1,436,545              
American Express 800,000                  785,488                 1415 795,313                 2.70% 3.20% 03/03/22 821,753                  
Walt Disney Company 815,000                  798,692                 1416 809,725                 2.45% 3.00% 03/04/22 836,104                  
Paccar Financial Corp 930,000                  929,498                 1096 929,759                 2.65% 2.67% 05/10/22 961,128                  
Visa Inc 825,000                  795,407                 1611 813,005                 2.15% 3.03% 09/15/22 852,102                  
Bank of America 90,000                    86,542                    1647 88,553                   2.50% 3.43% 10/21/22 91,682                    
Oracle Corp 1,420,000              1,389,001              1763 1,405,828             2.63% 3.11% 02/15/23 1,487,399              
Amazon Inc 935,000                  925,996                 1409 929,805                 2.40% 2.66% 02/22/23 976,972                  
Burlington North Santa Fe Corp 800,000                  790,800                 1792 795,718                 3.00% 3.26% 03/15/23 841,662                  
Bank of NY Mellon 1,375,000              1,387,595              1555 1,382,112             3.50% 3.27% 04/28/23 1,478,078              
Apple Inc. Corp. 565,000                  563,463                 1095 563,750                 0.75% 0.84% 05/11/23 570,704                  
UnitedHealth Group Inc 720,000                  755,741                 1330 744,884                 3.50% 2.08% 06/15/23 777,352                  
Pfizer Inc 1,260,000              1,276,392              1807 1,270,796             2.95% 2.67% 03/15/24 1,355,141              

    Walmart Inc 1,425,000              1,495,196              1768 1,471,069             2.85% 1.78% 07/08/24 1,540,210              
    JP Morgan Chase 570,000                  570,000                 1461 570,000                 0.81% 0.65% 09/16/24 570,625                  

Bank of America 725,000                  725,000                 1464 725,000                 1.80% 0.81% 10/24/24 725,871                  
   Toyota Motor 315,000                  318,078                 1724 317,740                 1.80% 1.58% 02/13/25 328,849                  
   Toyota Motor 425,000                  429,152                 1724 428,697                 1.80% 1.58% 02/13/25 443,685                  
   Novartis Capital 1,425,000              1,475,744              1743 1,469,609             1.75% 0.98% 02/14/25 1,492,410              
Bristol Myers 650,000                  742,742                 1780 739,336                 3.88% 0.88% 08/15/25 745,076                  

Subtotal Medium Term Notes $18,605,000 $18,713,360 $18,770,424 2.37% $19,479,119

Subtotal PFM Managed Investment Accounts $95,150,000 $94,662,463 $95,116,601 1.89% $98,347,447

Total Investments $154,655,220 $154,167,683 $154,621,821 $157,852,667
(Source of Investment Amortized Cost: PFM)

9



INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY
Cash and Investment Summary

 Month Ended 
November 30, 2020

Par Cost Basis Term November Maturity Market

Amount Amount (Days) Value Date Value 

% 
Yield to 

Maturity
% 

Coupon

Restricted Deposits

Investment Pool Accounts

  CAMP - Water Connection Reserves $19,935,891 $19,935,891 N/A $19,935,891 0.14% N/A $19,935,891
  LAIF - Self Insurance Reserves 6,574,369  6,574,369    N/A 6,574,369   0.58% N/A 6,574,369  

Total Investment Pool Accounts 26,510,260   26,510,260   26,510,260   0.25% 26,510,260    

Bond and Note Accounts
2017A Debt Service Accounts $430 $430 N/A $430 0.00% $430
2020A Debt Service Accounts 1,185,320  1,185,320 N/A 1,185,320 0.00% 1,185,320
2020B Debt Service Accounts 4,859 4,859 N/A 4,859 0.00% 4,859
2020B Capitalized Interest Account 33,001,187   33,001,187 N/A 33,001,187 0.14% 33,001,187

Total Bond and Note Accounts $34,191,796 $34,191,796 $34,191,796 0.14% $34,191,796

2020B Construction Project Account
LAIF Construction Fund $186,249,139 $186,249,139 N/A $186,249,139 0.58% N/A $186,249,139
CAMP Construction Fund 10,510,732 10,510,732 10,510,732 0.14% 10,510,732

  Subtotal 2020B Construction Fund $196,759,871 $196,759,871 $196,759,871 0.55% $196,759,871

Total 2020B Construction Project Accts $196,759,871 $196,759,871 $196,759,871 0.553% $196,759,871

CCRA Deposits Held by Member Agencies 
City of Chino $13,444,056 $13,444,056 N/A $13,444,056 N/A N/A $13,444,056
City of Chino Hills 6,103,613  6,103,613 N/A 6,103,613 N/A N/A 6,103,613
Cucamonga Valley Water District 12,195,743   12,195,743 N/A 12,195,743 N/A N/A 12,195,743
City of Fontana 14,219,214   14,219,214 N/A 14,219,214 N/A N/A 14,219,214
City of Montclair 3,650,734  3,650,734 N/A 3,650,734 N/A N/A 3,650,734
City of Ontario 28,721,581   28,721,581 N/A 28,721,581 N/A N/A 28,721,581
City of Upland 5,926,385  5,926,385 N/A 5,926,385 N/A N/A 5,926,385

Subtotal CCRA Deposits Held by Member Agencies** $84,261,326 $84,261,326 $84,261,326 $84,261,326
**Total reported as of September 2020 less Capital Call receipts through November

CalPERS Deposits
CERBT Account (OPEB) $16,000,000 $16,000,000 N/A $21,039,894 N/A N/A $21,039,894

Subtotal CalPERS Deposits $16,000,000 $16,000,000 $21,039,894 $21,039,894
CERBT Strategy 2 Performance as of October 2020 1 Year Net Return was 4.32%. 

 Escrow Deposits
  Stanek Contractors Escrow #1537 & #1661 $311,218 $311,218 N/A $311,218 N/A N/A $311,218

Subtotal Escrow Deposits $311,218 $311,218 $311,218 $311,218

Total Restricted Deposits $358,034,471 $358,034,471 $363,074,365 $363,074,365

$515,107,571 $514,620,034 $520,114,066 $523,344,912
Total Cash, Investments, and Restricted Deposits 
as of November 30, 2020

10



INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY
Cash and Investment Summary

 Month Ended 
November 30, 2020

November Purchases
Par Amount Investment

No. Date Transaction Investment Security Type Purchased Yield to Maturity
1 11/12/20 Buy Fannie Mae Notes GSE 895,000 0.57%
2 11/24/20 Buy CA State Earthquake Authority Muni 195,000 1.48%

1,090,000$       

November Investment Maturities, Calls & Sales
Par Amount Investment

No. Date Transaction Investment Security Type Matured/Sold Yield to Maturity
1 11/10/20 Sell US Treasury Note Note $355,000 2.75%
2 11/12/20 Sell US Treasury Note Note 830,000 1.63%
3 11/17/20 Sell US Treasury Note Note 195,000 2.45%

Total Maturities, Calls & Sales 1,380,000$       

11



INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY
Cash and Investment Summary

 Month Ended 
November 30, 2020

Directed Investment Category Amount Invested Yield
CBB Repurchase (Sweep) $6,998,421 0.250%
LAIF - Unrestricted 41,951,171 0.576%
CAMP - Unrestricted 10,555,628 0.140%
Brokered Certificates of Deposit 3,955,000 1.690%
Medium Term Notes 18,770,424 2.374%
Municipal Bonds 1,936,588 0.979%
US Treasury Notes 35,023,665 2.468%
U.S. Government Sponsored Entities 35,430,924 1.126%

Total Investment Portfolio $154,621,821

Investment Portfolio Rate of Return 1.338%

Restricted/Transitory/Other Accounts Amount Invested Yield

CCRA Deposits Held by Member Agencies $84,261,326 N/A
CalPERS OPEB (CERBT) Account 21,039,894 N/A
CAMP Restricted Water Connection Reserve 19,935,891 0.140%
LAIF Restricted Insurance Reserve 6,574,369 0.576%
US Bank - 2017A Debt Service Accounts 430 0.000%
US Bank - 2020A Refunding Bond Accounts 1,185,320 0.000%
US Bank - 2020B Revenue Note Accounts 33,006,046 0.140%
US Bank - Pre-Investment  Money Market Account 1,281,405 0.020%
LAIF Construction Account 186,249,139 0.576%
CAMP Construction Account 10,510,732 0.140%
Citizens Business Bank - Demand Account 1,094,297 N/A
Citizens Business Bank - Workers' Compensation Account 39,928 N/A
Citizens Business Bank - Payroll Account 0 N/A
Other Accounts* 2,250 N/A
Escrow Account 311,218 N/A

Total Restricted/Transitory/Other Accounts $365,492,245
Average Yield of Other Accounts 0.464%

Total Agency Directed Deposits $520,114,066

*Petty Cash

12



Inland Empire Utilities Agency
Treasurer's Report of Financial Affairs

Month Ended November 30, 2020
Agency Investment Portfolio (Net of Escrow Accounts)

$519,802,848

CBB Repurchase 
(Sweep), 1.35%

Restricted 
Accounts (net of 
escrow), 69.79%

LAIF -
Unrestricted, 

8.07%
Medium Term 
Notes, 3.61%

Certificates of 
Deposit, 0.76%

Other Accounts, 
0.46%

U.S. Government 
Sponsored 

Entities, 6.82%

US Treasuries, 
6.74%

CAMP -
Unrestricted, 

2.03%

Municipal Bonds, 
0.37%

13



Inland Empire Utilities Agency
Treasurer's Report of Financial Affairs

Month Ended November 30, 2020
U.S. Government Sponsored Entities Portfolio

$35,430,924

Fannie Mae 
Bonds, 57.0%

Freddie Mac 
Bonds, 23.5%

Federal Home 
Loan Bank 

Bonds, 19.5%

14



Inland Empire Utilities Agency
Treasurer's Report of Financial Affairs

Month Ended November 30, 2020
Unrestricted Agency Investment Portfolio

$154,621,821

CBB Repurchase (Sweep), 
4.50%

Local Agency Investment 
Fund, 27.10%

Medium Term 
Notes, 12.10%

Certificates of 
Deposit, 2.60%Municipal Bonds, 1.30%

U.S. Government 
Sponsored Entities, 

22.90%

US Treasuries, 
22.70%

CAMP, 6.80%

15



$0

$10,000,000

$20,000,000

$30,000,000

$40,000,000

$50,000,000

$60,000,000

0-30 Days 31-180 Days 181-365
Days

366-730
Days

2 to 3 Years Over 3 Yrs

LAIF+CAMP $52,506,799

CBB Repurchase (Sweep) $6,998,421

GSE+CD+MTN+MUNI $564,816 5,361,847 25,143,941 31,667,364 32,378,633

Percent 38.48% 0.37% 3.47% 16.26% 20.48% 20.94%

Inland Empire Utilities Agency
Treasurer's Report of Financial Affairs

Month Ended November 30, 2020
Agency Investment Portfolio Maturity Distribution (Unrestricted)

$154,621,821

16



2.168%
2.270%

1.441%
1.338%

0.139%

0.872%

-0.012%
0.070%

2.043%
1.967%

0.620%
0.576%

1.582% 1.564%

0.114% 0.102%

-0.250%

0.000%

0.250%

0.500%

0.750%

1.000%

1.250%

1.500%

1.750%

2.000%

2.250%

2.500%

Inland Empire Utilities Agency
Treasurer's Report of Financial Affairs

Month Ended November 30, 2020
Agency Investment Portfolio Yield Comparison

Agency Yield Merrill Lynch 1-5 US Treasuries Index LAIF Yield 6 Months T-Bill

17


	Agenda 1
	Agenda 2
	Agenda 3
	Consent Item 1A
	Consent Item 1B
	Action Item 2A
	Information Item 3A
	Information Item 3B



